Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
September 10,2019
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, September 10 2019 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall,

Board members present: Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
Cliff Braly, Commissioner Starr Murphy and Commissioner Pete Hall.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott, Lucy & Ron
Seegan, Trish Day, Alan & Nina Asher, Mary Parker, Anna Ledford, Barbara Gould, Sally
Covington, Richard Hughes, Lauren & Daniel Greeley, Christina & Grant Garman, Michael
Beerli, Bruce & Karen Strickland and Steven Hurst.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the September 10, 2019 agenda.
Commissioner Hall moved to accept the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to August 13, 2019 minutes,
Commissioner Braly moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments:

Anna Ledford said she attended the last meeting and she does support the purchase of the
golf course property. She reiterated a similar situation where she lived before! She said the
town is now developing the property into a park a little bit at a time. Her concerns are
developers could come in and build what they want.

Allen Asher said he was very confused by the Public Hearing. He said the commissioners
rejected the purchase proposal at their last meeting and now they are talking about it again.
He said he did not know how to comment because he did not know what was on their
minds. He said he’d like to know what the commissioners” proposal is so he could
comment. Mayor Fowler said the commissioners would be discussing the purchase of the
property later in the meeting.

Barbara Gould asked whether the town was picking up storm debris and when the fall clean
up would be. Mayor Fowler said the commissioners would be setting a date later in the
meeting.

Ron Seegan said he was also confused by the Public Hearing. Ile wants to hear what the
commissioners have to say.

Steve Hurst said he is a minister in New Bern with members who own homes on the river in
Carolina Pines. He asked the commissioners to make a decision on whether to purchase the
golf course property and to go look at Carolina Pines because they will see the future of
Minnesott Beach if the Town does not purchase the golf course property. The entire area is
overgrown with weeds and vines. Folks there cannot sell their properties. He asked the
commissioners to take into account that the Town’s property values will be directly affected

0/10/2019 BOC meeting 1



by this decision. Mr. Hurst said he was totally shocked by their last meeting. The
overwhelming majority was pro the purchase and the commissioners voted against it. He
said the commissioners’ job was to do what the residents want, not what they want. He said
they were not representing what the town residents want.

Purchase of Golf Course Property — for discussion and possible motion or action
Commissioner Murphy asked if she could speak to the residents present. She said she
totally understood where everyone was coming from. The commissioners called the Public
Hearing to find out what the residents wanted. She said she had called many of her
neighbors to get their opinions. She said the commissioners all care about Minnesott, about
the property values, the money, but she said she felt the commissioners had jumped the gun.
There were many things they were not aware o, She said the water front property on the
club cannot be used because of CAMA regulations. She said there are lots of expenses that
she had not thought about that would be associated with owning the property that might
cause an increase in taxes which she did not want. She said the town would have to hire
someone to take care of the property and to pay for insurance. Commissioner Murphy said
she wanted to do what was right for the community. She said she had visited the closed golf
courses in Fairfield Harbor, Carolina Pins and Morehead City. She said she did not want to
sce this property overgrown with weeds. Commissioner Murphy said she wants to protect
the town from spending money unnccessarily.

Mayor Fowler said the first agenda item was to discuss the purchase of the MG&CC
property. He reported the board had a special closed session a couple weeks ago to discuss
the purchase of the golf course property. Out of this meeting they decided to contact the
town’s attorney with specific questions:

1. Can the Town pay $220,000 at closing, own the land and pay $50,000 a year later.
Attorney said, “Yes.” However, he pointed out the criteria would have to be worked out for
the money to be released. He said it might be a difficult process.

2. If the Town paid $220,000 at closing and a year later would the town still owe the
$50,000 if the club had closed. Attorney said, “Yes, the town would still owe the money.”
3. Tair Market Value lease back to the Club. Attorney said there is no problem with a
municipality purchasing property. There is no problem with a municipality leasing property
to a non-profit company or entity. There can be a problem leasing property to a private
organization at a below market rate. The attorney has not found a case file that allows this.
He said it may be doable, but he was not certain it would be successful. Mayor Fowler said
it would mean added attorney fees. Mayor Fowler reminded the board that at the last board
meeting the commissioners had voted not to move forward with the purchase. Since then,
we have given thought about how to move forward. He said the issue before the board now
is what would be a Fair Market Value (MFV) lease. Mayor Fowler said the attorney said the
town would need to get a realtor who was experienced in this to come up with an amount.
He said if we come up with a fair market value and the club could afford it, then we could
move forward. Mayor Fowler said he had talked with Ed Kujat earlier, so he was aware of
the situation. There will be a club board meeting next week. Currently, we do not have a
FMYV dollar amount. Mayor Fowler said if the board does nothing, the vote from the last
meeting stands. He proposed they go to the club with an offer of $270,000 plus a FMV
lease and see what the club board says. Commissioner Hall asked about the deed on the
property, if it has to remain a golf course when it is sold. Mayor Fowler said he would
follow up. Commissioner Garfinkel asked if our attorney is confident about the FMV

9/10/2019 BOC meeting 2



issues. Since we are not paying fair market value, must the club pay FMV to the town?
Mayor Fowler said yes, he was confident with a lawyer caveat. There was no case he could
find in his limited research that compares. Commissioner Braly made a motion to research
the deed and to move forward with the purchase and offer $270,000 with a FMV lease to the
club. All ayes.

Storm report: Mayor Fowler said he’d driven around town and there was minimum
damage from Hurricane Dorian. He said he’d heard Chris Daniels had a tree fall into his
den. Commissioner Murphy said a lady had a tree fall on her car. Commissioner Braly said
a several neighbors lost their bulkhead. Mayor Fowler said we were very fortunate.

Town Manager’s report: There are no zoning applications. Mrs. Braly asked the
commissioners for articles for the Fall Newsletter. She said the Town has a new mailbox
because someone vandalized the old one.

Current Finances: Commuissioner Hall said all income and expenditures were within the
budget ranges. The Town’s current assets as of August 31, 2019 are: First Citizen's Bank
Checking $14.244.64; First Citizen's MM $288,032.94; CressCom Bank’s Savings
$218,767.32; North Carolina Management Trust is $209,060.58; Petty Cash $50.00. The
town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling $231,056.75. Total assets
for the Town are $986,689.21.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported the Planning Board did
not meet in September. He said Arlington Place wants to bring a proposal to the town
about taking over the state-maintained portion of Burton Farms Road that is in the
town Iimits. Commissioner Hall asked for the Planning Board to hear the proposal and
bring their recommendations to the Commissioners.

Mayor Fowler said Alan Asher volunteered to join the Planning Board. He asked him
to introduce himself. Mr. Asher said he was a member of the planning board in his
hometown in New Jersey. He said he was familiar with real estate development.
Commissioner Garfinkel nominated Alan Asher to the Planning Board. All ayes.

Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Arapahoe Yolunteer Fire Dept donation: Commissioner Murphy said she had
scheduled a meeting with Chris last week, but because of the hurricane, that did not
happen. She said the Arapahoe Fire Department 1s in great need of money for training,
equipment and a new truck. She said they only have seven volunteers. If there is a
fire, help has to come from other townships. Pamlico County is working on bringing
in a firefighter who would work the county daily. Commissioner Murphy said the fire
department depends on taxes and grants. She said they do not do fund raisers because
they have no volunteers to help. Commissioner Murphy said a county commissioner is
suggesting increasing the fire tax for Minnesott Beach by 1%. Mayor Fowler asked if
the town gave a one-time donation, would that negate a tax increase? Commissioner
Murphy said she would ask when she met with Chris and report back next month.

Town projects: Comnussioner Braly reported Ken Heath had started the Hardison
Road culvert repair today and should be finished by the end of the week. After this is

9/10/2019 BOC meeting 3



completed, he will begin the Phillips Drive drainage ditch at Mrs. Johnson’s property.
Mayor Fowler said, “hats off to Kenny!” He said Ken called him to tell him he’d gone
around the town following the hurricane to check on things. He said he pushed a trce
off Jeff Road.

Town Clean-up: Commissioner Braly suggested having the Town Clean-up October
3 & 4% because of the amount of storm debris. It is a month earlier than usual. The
county has already said they will not pick up debris from this storm. Commissioner
Murphy moved to have the clean-up Oclober 3" and 4%, if Larry and Thomas are
available. All ayes.

Miscellaneous: none
There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the regular meeting.

All Ayes. ‘,
[/Gﬁm /U/M

Donna Scott, Town Clerk

9/10/2019 BOC meeting 4



